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LIST OF ABREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS

MksU - Machakos University

VC - Vice Chancellor

EVE s Deputy Vice Chancellor

AFF = Administration, Planning and Finance
ASA - Academic and Student affairs

RIL - - Research, Innovation and Linkages

TNT .- The National Treasury
MoE - Ministry of Education

TVET: - Technical and Vocational Education and Training
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KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT
a) Background information
I\f"lachakm University is premier University with the mandate of promoting advancement in

knowledge, training, technology development and dissemination for the beiterment of life in
the socicty. Being the only public University in Machakos County, the University is expected to
play a leading role in higher education, economically, socially, environmentally, and
politically. The University therefore supports academic, research, Linkages and community
based programmes with the aim of relieving suffering and improving the quality of life to all
mankind.

Machakos University has a rich technical background having been founded in 1957 as a
Technical Rural Training School by the then colonial government. It was converted into
Machakos Technical and Trade School in 1955, Machakos Technical School in 1967,
Machakos Technical Training Institute in 1987, Machakos University College in 2012 before
receiving its Charter in 2016. The University has therefore been able to develop and retain
highly trained, motivated and experienced academic and administrative staff who continue to
support the wide range of courses offe red in its schools.

The University is located at the heart of the Lower Eastern Region, and situated only a kilometre
away from Machakos City along Machakos/ Wote Road. It is about 66km from Nairobi city and
28km from Konza Technopolis.

Machakos University has three divisions; Academic and Student affairs, Administration
Flanning and Finance and, Rescarch Innovation and Linkages. It has grown in terms of linkages
and partnerships with public and private, national and global organizations. The University
has held four (4) graduation ceremonies after being chartered, graduating 4,408 graduands.
The institution has also held two (2) international conferences bringing together rescarchers
from all over the world, a feat which has enriched the research in the region. It has continued
participating in extra-curriculum activities like games and music which have been
instrumental in building talents. Lately, the University, in a partnership with students,
managed to develop and pilot an innovation on e-voting which facilitated the smooth running
of student elections. The University is certified under the IS0 9001:2015 which has seen it
maintain and continuously improve its quality services and customer satisfaction

The University stakeholders include: Students, staff, MksUJ Alumni, Parents/guardians,
Sponsors, Regulatory Bodies, Ministry of Education, Primary and Secondary Schools, Other
Ministries, Departments and Govermment Agencies, County Governments, Local community,
Other institutions of higher learning both local and international, Suppliers/contractors, Non-
governmental Organizations and Community Based Organizations, International
Organizations Industries, Religious Organizations, Trade Unions and other Citizens.

HIPngu
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KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
b) Principal Activities
The principal activity of Machakos University is to provide scholarly education through

Training, Research and Innovation for industrial and socio-economiic transformation of our
comrmunities,

Vision
A preferred University of Excellence in scholarship and service delivery
i

To Provide scholarly education through Training, Research and Innovation for Industrial and
socio-economic transformation of our communities

Mandate

The core mandate of Machakos University is to Teach, Train, Conduct Research, Innovate, and
Collaborate, Generate New Knowledgze and Provide Community Service

Philosophy

The Fhilosophy of Machakos University is to provide trans-formative leadership in Teaching,
Training, Research, Innovation, Industrial and Tech nology transfer for wealth creation

Core values

Integrity
Accountability
Frofessionalism
Inclusivity
Creativity
Teamwork

Equity
c) Key Management

The entity’s day-to-day management is under the following key organs:

e S B S

(a) University Council

(b} The Vice Chancellor

(¢} University Management Board
{(d) University Senate
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KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

d) Fiduciary Management

The key managemeni personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30" June,
2020 and who had dirvect fiduciary responsibility were:

Designation Name
{a) Vice Chancellor Prof. Lucy W, Irungu
(b) DVC (Administration, Planning & Finance) Prof. (Eng.) Douglas Shitanda
(e} DVC (Academic & Student Affairs) Prof, Jovce Agalo
(d) DVC (Research, Innovation & Linkages) Prof. Peter N. Mwita

) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

The Council provides strategic direction, exercise control and remain accountable through
effective leadership, entreprencurship, integrity and good judgment. The University Council
oversight arrangement is coordinated by the following Council Committees which have their
fiduciary Responsibilities as outlined in the Corporate Governance Statcment set out on pages

wviil by Jodil.

(a) Finance, Planning and Development Committee
{b) Academic Affairs Committee

{c) Human Resources Comumitiee

(d) Audit and Compliance Comumitiee

f) Entity Headquarters
PO Box 156-90100
Wolte Road

Machakos, KENYA

2) Entity Contacts
Telephone: (254) 044-20353
Cell: 0735 247939 / 0723 805829
E-mail: infodmmksy ac ke
Website: warw,inksu.ac ke

vi| Page
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KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
h) Entity Bankers

1. National Bank of Kenya 3. Standard Chartered Bank 5. Co-operative Bank
P.O. Box 274-90100 P.O. Box 29-90100 F.O. Box 1250-90100
Machakos Machakos Machakos.

2. KCB Bank Kenya 4. Equity Bank
F.O. Box 30-90100 P.O Box 2453 - 90100
Machakos. Machakos

1) Independent Auditors
Auditor General
Kenya National Audit Office
Anniversary Towers, University Way
F. O. Box 30084, GFO 00100,
Nairobi, KENYA

J)  Principal Legal Adviser
The Attorney General
State Law Office, Haraimbes Avenue
F.O Box 40112, City Square 00200,

Nairobi, KENYA
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Mactmbas Lpfrersdie

Chairman of Council
Date of Birth: 19245

Key Qualifications: Ph.[, Degree from the University of London and Bachelor
of Architecture from the University of Nairobi.

Work Experience: An Architect with many years of service. Currently a
Consultant with Bascline Architect imited

Council Member and Chairman, Finance, Planning and Development
Committee of Counil
Date of Birth: 19381

Key Qualifications: MBA- Finance and Governance, CFM (Certified Mediator),
certified governance trainer and Business development and company strategist

Work Experience: Vice President Law Society of Kenya, Deputy Secretary
General East Africa Law Society. Legal consultant and trainer in corporate
governance, Labour Laws and Intellectual Property Rights. Head of Legal
Services ICPAK and Chairs the EALS Young Lawyers Committee Founder Face of
Bar {(now hosting straight talk series in partnership with Universities and Law
Schools)-A mentorship platform for young professionals

Council Member and Chairman, Audit and Compliance Committee of
Council
Date of Birth: 1957

Key Qualifications: On-going Fh.D. (Development Studies)

Work Experience; Over 10 years' experience as a senior public administrator.
Served at different levels at both Kenyatta University and Jomo Kenyatta
University of Agriculture and technology in charge of all the administration
functions of a Campus. Freviously served as a Council Member for the CUK
and its precursor till the end of the term in June 2017. Currently a director at
the Centre for Advocacy Against Drugs and Alcohol Abuse (CAADA)
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UNIVERSITY COUNCIL MEMBERS (CONTINUED)

Council Member and Chairman, Human Resources Committee of Council
Date of Birth: 1983

Key Qualifications: LLM (Intelleciual property rights) and Post Graduate
Diploma in Law from University of Nairobi

Work Experience: Worked with several organizations serving in different
capacities among them being the founding Pariner at CFL Advocates and the
head of corporate Commercial law. Served as an Associate Parimer at MMC
Africa Law in-charge of the Intellectual Property Department. Current chair
of the Machakos University staff pension board of trustees

Council Member and Chairman, Academic Affairs Committee of Council
Date of Birth: 1965

Key Qualifications: MBA

Work Experience: An experienced and successful commercial manager and
leader with extensive experience gained in sales and marketing of
Pharmaceutical products and Vaccines in E. Africa. Currently a
Pharmaceutical Consultant with Exeter Pharmaceuticals, UK and formally
worked as Commercial Director at GlaxoSmithKline, (GSK) E. Africa Pharm.

Council Member
Date of Birth: 1985

Key Qualifications: MBA (Strategic Management)

Work Experience: Over 10 years' experience as a project management
specialist and extensive experience in the social development sector as an
advocate, facilitator, and rescarch consultant, with a special focus on
human rights, disability and inclusive development. Currenily a Senior
Advisor for the East African Regional Program to a UK Based Charity; and
a member of the Machakos University staff pension board of trustees.
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UNIVERSITY COUNCIL MEMBERS (CONTINUED)

Rep. Cabinet Secretary, The National Treasury and Ministry of Flanning
Date of Birth: 1970

Key Qualifications: MSc (Regional Development Planning), MSc
{Strategic Management)

Work Experience: 24 years in Development Planning

g Rep. Principal Secretary, State Department of University Education and
; ; :

Date of Birth: 1970

Key Qualifications: MSC Pure mathematics
Work Experience: Over 20 years in Policy Formulation

| Council Secretary / Vice Chancellor
Date of Birth: 1957

Key Qualifications: Fh.D. — Medical Entomology and Applied Parasitology

Work Experience: Ovwer 30 years in University Management and Research,
Prof. Irungu is a vibrant researcher in vector biclogy and host-vector-parasite
relationships with specific interest in malaria vectors and parasites of
neglected diseases. She has published extensively in refereed journals and has
mentored and supervised several postgraduate research students.
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Prof. Lucy W. Irungu
Vice Chancellor

Ph.D. — Medical Entomology and Applied Parasitology.
The Academic and Administrative Head of the University.

Prof. (ENG.) Douglas Shitanda
Deputy Vice C1 I P
Fh.DD. (Education). Fh.D. (Processing Engineering), Ph.D, (Statistics).
In-Charge of Academic and In-Charge of Administration, In-Charge of Research,
Student Affairs Planning and Finance Innovation & Linkages
CPA .ﬁlk‘ﬂ‘l A Dr. Susan Nzioki Dr. Wycliffe
Amukowa
Ehmiﬂmm.ﬂﬁg; Registrar (AP) Registrar (RIL)
Ph.D. (Knowledge MBA (Accounting), Ph.D. (Human Resource  ph.D. (Philosophy of
Management). CPA(KD. _ Management). Education}.
Supports the functions of Supports the Financial Supports the functions Supports the functions
A e dermie & Shdemnt Management function of .-’u..:il_nlmﬁtt'atlnn and of the Research,
Affairs Division. Planning Innovation & Linkages
Dhivision
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It is my pleasure to

present Machakos University Annual report
and Financial Statements for the year ended
30M Tune, 2020. The University Council
notes with appreciation the continued
support of the Government and other
stakeholders in running the institution. The
University confinues fo offer quality
programimes that are market-driven and
meel the demands of the society. The
Council endeavors to work with the
industry and other stratezic partners in
order to provide facilities to meet the
challenges the University is facing.

The University council continued with the
measures of sething up of management and
governance  structures  that  reflect
university status.

There has been a steady increase in student
population which has exerted a lot of
pressure on the existing facilities, thereby
necessitating the need for putting up more
facilities. The Council in collaboration with
the relevant stakeholders iz committed
towards delivering the same.

During the period, the University continued
with the implementation of the on-going

afs fere plve ponne craledd Bre 38, 020

Tuition and Office Block which is the only
main capital project for the University. This
is after the release of Kshs. 70 million
development grants earmarked tor the
project for the financial year 2019/2020.

The University has continued offering the
TVET programunes which is geared to
support the government’s push for the
competence based curriculum. This has
seen  the university supplement her
internally generated incomes and would
urge the Government to support the
university to continue offering the
vocational training.

During the period the University Council
in consultation with the University
Management and Senate continued with
the review and implementation of the
University Strategic Plan to be consistent
with the dynamic environment of the
education sector in Kenya.

The University was adversely affected in-
tering internally generated revenues and
the planned operations for the year due to
emergence of Covid-19 pandemic which
was declared a global concern during the
year under review,

Finally, | thank the Government and the
local donor agencies, suppliers and service
providers for their trust, support and
continued cooperation.

Chairman of Council
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REPORT OF THE VICE CHANCELLOR

I am pleased to present the

Annual report and Financial Statements of
Machakos University for the financial year
ended. 30%  june, 2020. Machakos
University 15 an academic institufion
committed in generating and transmitting
knowledge, skills and right attitudes
through  Science, Technology and
Innovation for the benefit of humanity.

Engancering equiprend

During the financial year under review, the
University has remained on course. The
main focus of which has been quality,
relevance, access and sustainability
intended to consolidate and reshape the
University with a view to living up to the
fully-fledzed University status.

Machakos University held her fourth
graduation recording the highest number
of graduands since inception. The total
nutmber of graduands were 1,880 which
included 1 FhD, 9 Masters,

xiii | P ag e

and
also

1.605 Bachelors,
27 Certificates.

238 Diplomas
The  University

embarked on measures and stratesies to re-
align Academic Programmes so as lo focus
on the niche areas.

The University has continued to offer and
enhance TVET programmes which are
geared to support the government’s Big 4
initiative and the competence based
curriculum. This has seen the university
supplement her internally generated
incomes and would urge the Government to
support the university to continue offering
the vocational training,

Special appreciation goes to all the students
who have chosen Machakos University as
their place of study and it will continue
offering market-driven academic
programmes for industrial and socio-
economic growth.

Students Welfare

Machakos University continued to support
the welfare of her main stakeholders
(students) to enhance their academic
environment in the spirit of producing
holistic graduates.

One of the greatest challenges in the
management of students’ welfare is the
large number of brilliant students from
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very humble backgrounds. In ovder fo

reduce incidences of dropping out due to
lack of fees, the University facilitated the
disbursement of bursaries to students.

The Institution has also supported students
to participate in co-curriculum activities
like games and sports among other student
activities.

The Introduction of the Centre for

Renewable Energy has also seen the growth”

of research and innovation for the
University. The University has continued to
encourage creativity by contfinuous funding
of new innovations during the financial
period.

Launching Ceremony for the Lubam workshop
in ksl

During the period under review, Luban
Waorkshop in Africa was established at
Machakos  University. The  Luban
Workshop is an international exchange and

s LA
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cooperation brand initiated by the
Government of China to  promote
vocational technical training around the
world. The University also received
eguipment of approximately Kshs. 44
million for the Luban Workshop.

The University continued to take staff
through trainings on grant proposal
writing, grant management, research
partnership and research methods and
Intellectual Property among others. This
has seen the University research grants
owtput, for both individual and
collaborative projects, continue to grow.

Our Internal Research Grants Fund
continues to position the University's
research agenda on the national interest
and has created a platform for mentoring of
early entry staff in engaging in research
and grant applications.

Our growing strategic parinerships have
continued to fill the gaps in which our staff
are now winning both research grants and
scholarships. The University’s innovation
outputs have also continued to grow with a
number put inte commercialization.

To availl a platform for knowledge
disseminatior, the University has continued
to prepare for the next annual international
conference by encouraging members to
participale in conferences both locally and
internationally.

l:i\»'ll".-:n_l,-:
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University Infrastructure

Mewly Completed ADE Building

Machakos  University endevours to
continue. using development granis
prudently. The University has been able to
complete twa major projects in the previous
financial year and is undertaking one major
project of Tuition and Office Block in the
201942020 financial year, The project has
remained behind schedule al the end of the
financial year due to challenges in
government funding. For instance, the
government reduced the capital funding by
120 million in the FY 2019/2020. In order
to revive some of the old buildings, the
University embarked on renovating one of
the neglected blocks; Nduilu block to afford
more office space for the Institution.

I am humbled to convey my appreciation
and gratitude to the University Council,
Management and all the members of staff
for their support, commitment and
dedication to their work and their efforts
that have seen Machakos University move
towards attaining its vision.

The University has ensured continued
implementation of the 2013-2017 national
collective bargaining agreemernts and the
2013-2017 local CBAs. The University was
also expecting to receive Kshs, 96.3 million

for payment of 2017-2021 national CBA
arrears.

Financial Sustainability

During the period, the University put in
place the necessary financial, procurement
and internal control measures on resource
utilization ko ensure that it meets the targets
of revenue collection and cost control
measures.

kg iy Lo g
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I express my sincere gratifude to the
Government of Kenya and in particularly
the state department of Education and
Rescarch for the recurrent funding of the
University as per the printed estimates. The
University received Kshs. 957,026,140 as
recurrent grants for the year. Despite the
many challenges the University has faced, |
am glad to report that the University has
managed to stay afloat financially.

Service Delivery and Vision 2030

In order to continue providing gquality
ediucation and services, the Directorate of
Quality Assurance which had been
previously introduced came up  with
various evaluation tools.

Machakos University hasz reviewed her
service charter and placed it in strategic
places including the University website.

xw|Page
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This has enhanced guality and efficient
service delivery.

The University also continued to respond to
the Governments Biz 4 initiative which is
key to bolster strong inclusive economic
growth and contribution to the Vision
2030.

The University was adversely affected in-
terms internally generated revenues and
the planned operations for the year due to
emergence of Covid-19 pandemic which

i s ik
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was declared a global concern during the
year under review. However, Machakos
University  has  implemented  the
Government measures to curb the current
situation regarding the spread of Covid-19
(Corona Virus).

Finally, I thank the Government of Kenya,
the local community, donor agencies, our
bankers, suppliers and service providers for
their support and cooperation

I‘Fi“’ﬂut
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Good corporate governance is key to the inlegrity of state corporations and is central to its

sustainability. Corporate governance plays a leading role in how corporations and their boards
and management are directed, controlled and held to account Corporate governance,
therefore, encompasses the systems, practices and procedures by which the individual
corporation is regulated in order to remain competitive, ethical, sustainable and fair.
Machakos University Council adheres to principles of openness, integrity and accountability
in its stewardship of the University’s affairs. It recognizes the developing nature of corporate
governance and assesses the University’s compliance with generally accepted corporate
governance practice on a regular basis, directly and through its Council committess and
management. The role of the Council is to ensure conformance by focusing on and providing
the Uriversity’s overall strategic direction and policy-making as well as performance review
through accountability and ensuring appropriate monitoring and supervision. The Council is
also responsible for the overall system of internal control and for reviewing its effectivencss.
The controls are designed to both safeguard the University’s assets and ensure the reliability of
financial information,

The University Management Board, comprising, the Vice Chancellor, Deputy Vice Chancellors,
Registrars and Chief Finance Officer meets regularly to consider issues of operational and
strategic importance to the University. Below arc the key features of the existing corporate
governance practices within Machakos University which are reviewed and improved on a
regular basis: -

1. University Council

The University Council consists of the Chairman and eight members, who have been appointed
in accordance with the Universities Act (2012). The full University Council meets at least four
times a year.

The Council is responsible for setting the direction of the University through the establishinent
of strategic objectives, key policies and approval of budgets. It monitors the implementation of
strategies and policies through a structured approach of reporting by management and
consequent accountability.
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CORPORATE GOVEENANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Council is actively involved and brings strong independent judgment on its deliberations
and discussions. The Umversity Council members have diverse skall set, a wide range of
knowledze and experience of University setting that is applied to the formulation of strategic
obyjectives and decision making., The Council meets regularly and retains full and effective
control over the University in all strategic, financial, operational and compliance areas. The

University council held the following full council meetings during the 2019/2020 financial

year:
Name Designation No. of Meetings | Meetings attended
Frof. Gideon Billy Hanjar Chairman of Council 11 11
Ms. Florence Muthoni Council Member ' T 11
Mr, Richard Mativu | Council Member BEE | 6
Ms. Harriette Chiggzai Council Member ' 11 5
Ms. Lorna Mbatia Council Member 1i G
Mr. Patrick Abelle Council Member 11 11
Mr. Peter Njorose Rep, C5, TNT 11 11
"Mr. Paul Mwangi Rep. PS, MoEST 11 11
Prof. Lucy [rungu Segretary of Council 11 11 3 |

Note: The meetings include seven (7) Special Meetings of council.

COUNCIL COMMITTEES
To assist the Council in the discharge of its responsibilities, Council commitiees have been
established. All the Council comnmitiees rieet at least two times a year. The commitiess are as

follows: -

1. FINANCE, FLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

Membership
(1) Ms. Harriette Chiggai - Chairman
(2) Ms. Lorna Mbatia - Council Member
{3) Mr. Faul Mwangi — Rep - S, State Department of University Education and Research
{4} Mr. Peter Njoroge - Representative - Cabinet Secrefary, The National Treasury
(5) Prof. Lucy [rungu (Vice-Chancellor) — Secretary
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Re il
1. To receive, consider and submit the proposed budget estimates from the various

L

e N m W

9.

10,

11.

sections for approval by the Council;

To control the banking and investment cperations of the Council and to make provision
for the examination of all the bills and accounts and for the discharge of liabilities
incurved by the University;

To control all the expenditure of the University under approved annual estimates;

To receive and consider all requests for authorization of expenditure more than the
approved annual estimates and make recommendations to the Council;

To consider and propose fees and other rates to the Council;

To report to the Council all matters related to finance and development;

To ensure that accurate records are kept on the establishments in the University;

To consider and recommend to the Council the priovity development projects and
receive reports, and the recommendations of Management on the progress of the
physical development of the University;

To report to the Council on the progress of physical infrastructure development of the
University;

To prepare University Development plans for an approved period and submit to the
Council; and

To exercise such other powers as the Council may from time to lime delegate to the
Comnuttee.

Mectings held during the 20193/2020 financial year:

| Name | Designation No. of Meetings Meetings attended
| Ms. Harriette Chiggai | Chairman 5 5

Ms. Lorna Mbatia Member 5 Z
Mr. Feter Njoroge Rep. CS, TNT - 5 5

Mr. Paul Mwangi | Rep. S, MoEST 5 5

Prof. Lucy Irungu | Secretary 5 == 3

Note: The meetings include one (1) Special Meeting of the council committee.

2, ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
Membership

(1)
(2)

Mr. Fatrick Abelle — Chairiman
Ms. Florence Muthoni - Council Member

{3) Mr. Paul Mwangi — Rep, S, State Department of University Education and Research

(4)

Mr. Peter Njoroge — Representative - Cabinet Secretary, The National Treasury

(5) Prof. Lucy Irungu (Vice-Chancellor) - Secretary
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CORFORATE GOVEENANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

. ibillities

(1) To advise the Council on academic programmes where the University has
competitive advantage;

(2) Toreceive and recommend all policy documents dealing with academic and rescarch.

(3)To receive and recommend to the Council all Memorandum of
Understanding/Agreement pertaining to collaboration and linkages;

(4) To assist the University in establishing collaboration with industry and other
stakeholders;

(5) To lobby for bursaries, research grants, scholarships and funds for capacity building;

(6) To exercise such other powers as the Council may from time to ime delegate to the
Committee.

Meetings held during the year

Name ' Designation No. of Meetings Meetings a

Mr. Patrick Abelle | Chairman 3 3
“Ms. Florence Muthoni | Member O A
“Mr. Peter Njoroge Rep. CS, TNT 3 2
“Mr. Paul Mwangi | Rep. FS, MoEST 3 ; 3

Prof. Lucy Irungu Secretary 3 i 3

3. HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Membership
(17 Ms: Lorna Mbatia - Chairman
(2] Mr. Richard Mativu - Council Member
(3) Mr, Paul Mwangi — Rep - PS, State Department of University Education and Research

(4) Mr. Feter Njoroge - Representative - Cabinet Secretary, The National Treasury
(5) Prof. Lucy Irungu (Vice-Chancellor) - Secretary

R ibilities:

(1} To review and make recommendations to the Council on Staff Terms and Conditions of
Service as and when necessary or when directed to do so by the Council from time to
time;

{2) To consider proposals of Terms and Conditions of Service made by staff unions through
the University Management Board;

(3) To receive and review, from time to time human resource policies and the code of
conduct of the University employees;

xxxvii [ Page
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

{4) To plan for human resource development in the University;

(5) To receive, consider and recommend to the Council staff recruitment and promotion
criteria;

(6) To examine and recommend Lo the Council staff rationalization and career structures
within the University; and

{7) To exercise such other powers as the Council may from time to time delezate to the

Committee,
Meetings held during the year
‘Name | Designation No. of Meetings Meetings attended
| Ms. Lorna Mbatia Chairman . 4 3
| Mr. Richard Mativu Member _ 4 4 _
| Mr. Peter Njoroze Rep. C5, TNT 4 1 4 -
Mr. Paul Mwanzi Rep. PS, MoEST 4 4
| Prof. Lucy [rungu Secretary 4 4

Note: The meetings include one (1) Special Meeting of the council committee.
4. AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

Membership

(1) Ms, Florenoe Muthoni - Chairman

{2) Mr. Richard Mativu - Council Member

(3) Mr. Paul Mwangi— Rep - FS, State Department of University Education and Research
(4) Mr. Peter Njoroze - Representative - Cabinet Secretary, The National Treasury

(3) CPA John Nzure (Chief Internal Auditor) - Secretary

o

(1) To evaluate adequacy of management procedure with regard to issues relating to risk
management, control and governance;

{2) To reviewing and approve the audit charter where applicable and internal audit annual
work plans;

(3) To review internal and external audit findings and recommendations and propose
corrective and preventive actions where necessary;

{4) To review the systems established to ensure sound public financial management and
internal controls, as well as compliance with policies, laws, regulations, procedures, plans
and ethics;

xxxviii |[Pace
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(3) To initiate special audits and or investigations on any allegations, concerns and complaints
regarding corruption, lack of accountability and transparency in consultation with the
Accounting Officer; and

(6) To exercise such other powers as the Council may from time lo lime delegate to the
Commuttee

Meetings held during the year

Name Designation No. of Meetings Meetings attended
Ms. Florence Muthoni | Chairman 2] B

Mr. Richard Mativu Member B 4

Mr. Patrick Abelle Member G

Mr. Peter Njoroge | Rep. CS, TNT LN i
Mr. Paul Mwangi | Rep. PS, MoEST | & 5

CPA John Nzure Secretary | & [

Note: The meetings include four (4) Special Meetings of the council committee.

Besides the four main Council committees, there also exist other ad-hoc committees namely:

{a) Appeals commiltee.

(b) Graduation and Sealing committee

{c) Honorary degrees’ committee

(d) Appomtments committee for grades 14 and 15

{e) Senior managzement staff disciplinary committee for grade 14 and above

The following were ad-hoc meetings held during the year:

1. Appointments committee meetings

Name Designation No. of | Meetings
Meetings | invited attended |
Frof, Gideon Billy Hanjan Chairman of Council 1 1 1
Ms. Lorna Mbatia Council Member 1 1 1
Prof. Lucy Irungu Secretary of Council 1 1 I

xxix |Page

ISO0O001: 2005 Cartified .. . ccovviiimmniiniianeenortatine Hedehis in Traforsing Indisty amd Ecowoy




Meerhimhos Flriiversing

Fiatercdend pover I T sl Flivaerclol siasienienr FalrE file e chiea e o, 202

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

2, Staff Appeals committee meeting

Prof. Gideon Billy Hanjari i Chairman of Council 1 1 ]
Mr. Patrick Abelle ' Council Member 1 1
Mr. Peter Njoroge Rep. C5, TNT 1 I
Prof. Lucy Irungu Secretary of Council 1 |

3. Graduation and Sealing comumittes meeting

Name Designation | No. of Meetings | Meetings attended |
Prof. Gideon Billy Hanjari Chairman of Council | 1 1 |
M. Patrick Abelle Council Member | 1 - 1 |
Prof. Lucy Irungu Secretary of Council I [ 1 |

2. Council Members’ BEemuneration

Sitting allowance for council members, monthly honoraria and telephone services for the
chairman are guided by circular No. OP/CAB.9/21/2A/LI1/43 dated 23rd November, 2004.
The daily subsistence allowance of Kshs. 18,200.00 is guided by circular No.
OP/SCAC.9/21.2VOL1 (164) dated 28th Apnl, 2015, The remunecration for Council
members consists of Chairman’s monthly honoraria in addition to the sitting and subsistence
allowances, together with mileage reimbursement for the services of council members in
connection with council & council committes meetings during the financial year ended 30
June, 2020 are outlined under Note 10 on page 24 of the Report and Financial Statements
{Council expenses)

3. Succession Flan
The appointment of council members is the prerogative of the Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of
Education. Members have no control of the appointment and duration of service.

Board Charter
Machakos University Council has a beard charter. The Council is also guided by Mwongozo

Code of Governance,

5. Appointment and removal of Council members
The appointment of Council members is the prerogative of the Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of

Education
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The current Machakos University Council members were inducted from 25th—27th February,
2019. The council members attended a risk management training on 12" and 13 March
2020 and an onhne training for five days from 15% June 2020 to 19% June 2020.

MName Designation Days of Trainings | Days attended
Prof. Gideon Billy Hanjari Chairman of Council 7 7

Ms. Forence Muthorni Council Member 7 7

Mr. Bichard Mativu Council Member 7 N

Ms. Harriette Chiggai Council Member 7 B 7

Ms. Lorna Mbatia Council Member 7 7

Mr. Patrick Abelle Council Member 7 7

Mr. Peter Njoroge Rep. CS, TNT 7 7

Mr. Paul Mwangi Rep. PS, MoEST 7 F§

Prof. Lucy Irungu Secretary of Council | 7 % T

Council and Council Members’ Performance
Owing to changes in membership of Machakos University Council on 15th October, 2018, the
Council performance evaluation exercise was postponéd from December, 2018, The evaluation
was eonducted on 13 February 2020 by the State Corporations Advisory Commission (SCAC)
and the submission of the report done on 19" February 2020,

Name Designation No. of meetings | Meetings attended
Prof. Gideon Billy Hanjari Chairman of Council : 2 2
Ms. Florence Muthoni Council Member 2 2
Mr. Richard Mativu Council Member 2 2
Ms. Harriette Chizgai Council Member 2 -
Ms. Lorna Mbatia Council Member 2 2
Mr. Patrick Abelle Council Member 2 2
Mr. Peter Njoroge Rep. C§, TINT 2 2
Mr. Paul Mwangi Rep. PS, MoEST 2 e 2
Frof. Lucy Irungu | Secretary of Council 2 2
Conflict of interest

In every Council meeting held by the Machakos University Council, Members declare conflict
of interest on matters in the agenda and register the same in the conflict of interest register

book,

Ethics and Conduct
Machakos University Council Members uphold the highest standard of Ethics and conduct
while executing their mandate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

10. Governance Audit
The Council has put in place a combination of processes and structures to inform, direct,
manage and monitor the activities of the University towards the achievement of its olyectives.
There is an independent audit and compliance committee that reports to the Council on a
regular basis. The audit conumitiee plays a key role in assisting the Council to fulfill its
oversight responsibilities in areas such as financial reporting, internal control systems, risk
management sysiems and the internal and external audit functions.

11, Internal Controls

The University has implemented and maintained internal controls designed to provide
reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the financial statements and to
adequately safeguard and maintain accountability of the University’s assets. Such controls are
based on Law, Government & University regulations, Policies and circulars and are
implemented by trained personnel with appropriate segregation of duties. The eftectiveness of
the system of internal controls is monitored regularly through internal audit functions,
operational meetings and the annual external audit.

12. Going Concern

The University Council confirms that Machakos University has adequate resources to continue
in operation for the foreseeable future and therefore, the continued use of going concern as a
basis of preparing the financial statements
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SECTION A
OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
A) INCOME ANALYSIS:
Total Incomes for FY 2019/2020
I.G.A. & Other Incomas
6%
Amortized Grants

im kind
0.3

Research Grants
%
= Gowaernment Grants = Research Grants = CRA Grants
« amortized Grants in kind ® Tuition & Other Related Incomes = LG_& & Other Incomes

During the 201972020 financial year, Government grants contributed to 61% of the total
recurrent incomes while tuition and its related incomes contributed to 21%. Income generating
activities and research contributed to 6% and 2% respectively, The University mostly depended
on grants from the government to execute its operations. During the year CBA grants
amounting to 10% of the total recurrent income were also realized. :
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Comparison of Income between 2019/2020 and 2018/2019
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Gowvernment  Research Granis CBA Grants  Amortized Grants Tultion & Othar  LG.A. & Other
Grants fim kingd Related incomes Imvearmes

B 2019-2020 & 201B-2019

There was a substantial improvement of government grants in 2019/2020 financial year
compared to 2018/2019 financial year. However, the tuition and related income together with
incomes from generating activities dropped due to the effect of Covid- 19 pandemic in the third
and fourth quarters of the year. During the financial year there were CBA grants realized
amounting to 162 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B) EXFENDITURE AMNALYSIS
Total Expenses for FY 2019/2020
Repairs &
M;:'"-E"'m increase in Provision
PENSES — Other Expenses - for doubthd debts
1% - 3"‘-; D'Fwsg:hnn [ 0.7%
Adrministration & i

Oparations Expengas -,

Academic 9%
Expanses

[ \
Council RS
Expensas

1%

« Employmant Costs + Council Expenses

« Academic Expenses + idrinistration & Operations Expenses
= Repakrs & Malntenance Expenses « Dther Edpenses

= Dapreciation = [ncrease in Provision for doubtful debis

During the 2019/ 2020 financial year, employment costs took the highest amount of recurrent
expenditure with 75%. Employment expenses include a provision of 96.3 million for the
payment of 2017-2020 CBA arrears. Adminisirative and operations expenses formed 9% with

the academic expenses taking 6% of the total recurrent expenses. The council expenses were

1% of the total recurrent expenditure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

SECTION B

KEY FROJECTS AND INVESTMENT DECISIONS PLANNED AND IMPLEMENTED
Within the financial year ended 30* June 2020, the University has been implementing the
following projects in order of priority:

§/No Project o %Dfl H of the Remarks
project
1. | Tuition and Office Block 43 Gox | ©n-geingand butbehind

schedule

Lift installation in the
2. institutional managemaent 100 ALA Complete
Training Facility

Development of Sports and
3. Games facility 2 ALA On-going and on schedule
{phase 1)

Funding for the projects was based on expected development grants. However, the Government
funding policy was reviewed and release of funds is only based on the projects listed in the
printed estunates. The Government Priority is also to fund ongeoing projects before embarking
Orn new ones.

The University received Kshs, 70,390,829 as development grants during the year which has
speecled up the implementation of the on-going development projects. However, the
government slashed the budget for the project by Kshs. 120 million.

SECTION C
COMPFLIANCE WITH STATUTORY REQUIREEMENTS

During the financial year the University complied with all statutory requirements. The
Institution does not have any non-compliance that may result to any potential litization issues

or exposure to contingent liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
SECTION D: MAJOR RISKS
OFERATIONAL RISKS

This is loss resulting from inadequate or failed procedures, systems or pelicies including:

1) Failure to collect the full income owing

2) Some students fail to pay their full fees

3) Some debtors from non-tuition activities delay paying for services rendered.

4) The University is facing the risk of insccurity which is prevalent in the country
5) The University is faced by the global effects of the Covid-19 pandemic

Risk Mitization S .
1) Strict enforcement of the fees payment policy
2) Enhancing debt collection measures
3) Enforcement of the 100% payment for the Hotel

4) Megotiation and mediation on legal matters
%) Installation of biometric systems, engaging armed police officers and outsourcing the security

SErVICES
6) Implementation of government measures to contain covid-139

MARKET RISES:
These are losses due to factors that affect the overall performance of market including:

1) Risk of not attracting enough module two students due to the competition from other

universities.
2) Risk of failing to attract enough specialist lecturers to act as thematic leaders due to

competition.
Risk Mitigation strategies:

1) Aggzressive marketing of programmes
7} Enhance the diversity and quality of the University programmes
3) Enhancing the staff working environment and improving staff welfare

CAPITAL RISES

The University is not exposed to any capital risks.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
LIQUIDITY RISK

This is termed to be the inability to meet short term financial demands. This usually occurs due to
the inability to convert assets like debts to cash.

Risk Mitigation strategies:

1) Step up efforts to collect the outstanding fees and agsressive debt collection at the hotel

SECTION E
MATERIAL ARREARS IN STATUTORY AND OTHER FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS

The University has no material arrears in statutory and financial obligations to the national
exchequer or any other Government agency.

SECTION F
FINANCIAL FROBITY AND SERIOUS GOVERNANCE ISSUES

The University does not have any cases of financial improbity as reported by internal audit/ Audit
committee, external auditors, or other National Government Agencies providing oversight.

There are no governance issues among the members of the Council and between the Council and
management team, including conflict of interest. This has been due to the cordial working
relationship between the council and management of the University as well as adherence to
constitutional requirements and guidelines.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT/SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING
Machakos University being a public entity embraces the policy of Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) through engaging herself with the following amongst many social responsibilities:

(a) Charitable Activities

The University has been offering financial support to the needy students through coordinating
bursary support opportunities and sponsorship to such cadre of students where possible as well as

work-study progranume

{b) Environmental Improvement activities

Participating in environmental awareness through presidential award scheme and introduction of
communal monthly cleaning day (Ngwatanio) has been one of the environmental activities of the

Institufion.

Cleaning during the MksL environmental and cleaning diy
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT/ SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING (CONTINUED)

The University actively participated in tree planting in collaboration with Machakos County and
Kenya forest service. Machakos University participated in tree planting in vavious primary schools,
churches and Machakos University environment.

(c) Academic Mentorship

Machakos University was involved in offering career advice to students within and around Machakos
County during the financial year. The University also offered internship and industrial attachment
to youth from the surrounding community and Institutions.
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REPORT OF THE UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

Machakos University Council submit their report together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended June 30, 2020 which shows the state of Machakos University affairs.

The principal activity of Machakos University 15 to provide scholarly education through Training,
Research and Innovation for industrial and socio-economic transformation of our communities.

Results

The results of Machakos University for the year ended June 30, 2020 are set out on page 1to 11
University Council Members

The members of the University Council who served during the year are shown on page vii to X.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of Machalkos University in accordance with
the provisions of Article 223 of the Constitution of Kenya, 2010 and section 7 of the Public Audit Act,

no, 34 of 2015,

By Order of the University Council

Prof. Lucy W.
VICE R/ SECRETARY Date: )9 1L 1ok
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STATEMENT OF UNIVERSITY COUNCIL’S RESPONSIBILITIES

Pursuant to Section 81 (1) of the Public
Finance Management Act, 2012 and Sections
14 & 15 of the State Corporations Act,
Machakos University Council is required to
prepare statements in respect of the University
which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the University at the end of the
financial period, and the operating results of
the University for that period. The University
Council is required to ensure that the
University maintains proper accounting
records, which disclose, with reasonable
accuracy, the financial position of the
University. The Council iz also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the University.

The council is responsible for the preparation
and presentation of Machakos - University
financial statements, which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the University for
arnd as at the end of the financial period ended
on June 30, 2020. This responsibility includes:
(i) maintaining adequate management
arrangements and ensuring that these
continue to be effective throughout the
reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper
accounting records, which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the University; (i) designing,
implementing  and  maintaining  internal
controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, and

Approval of the financial statements

ensuring that they arve free from material
misstatements, whether due to error or fraud;
(iv) safeguarding the assets of the University;
{v) selecting and applying accounting policies;
and (v1) making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in circumstances.

The Council accepts responsibility for
Machakos University financial statements,
which have been prepared using appropriate
accounting policies supported by reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates, and in
conformity with International Public-Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) and in the
manner required by the PEM Act, 2012 and
State Corporations Act Cap 446. The Council
is of the opinion that Machakos University
financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of the University transactions
during the year ended June 30, 2020, and of
its financial position as at that date. The
Council further confirms the completeness of
the accounting records maintammed for the
University, which have been relied upon in the
preparation of the University financial
statements as well as the adequacy of the
systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the
Council to indicate that the University will not
remain a going concern for at least the next
twelve months from the date of this statement.

The term of the University council lapsed on 14% August 2020, By the time the financial statements
were submitted on 30" September 2020, the new council had not been appointed. Therefore, the

financial s

ments were not adopted by the university council.

Prof. Gideon Billy Hanjari
Chairman of Council
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

Telaphone: +254-(30]) 3314000 HEADQUARTERS
E-mail: infol@oagkenya.go. ke Anniversary Towers
Website: wavw oagkenya.go.ke tonrovia Street

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GEMERAL F.O. Bax 30084-00100

Enhancing Aceounabiling bizilivy

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON MACHAKOS UNIVERSITY FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2020

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Qualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Machakos University set out on
pages 1 to 32, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2020,
and statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of
cash flows and statement of comparison of budget versus actual amounts for the year
then ended and summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya
and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. | have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purpose of the audit,

In my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Machakos University as at 30 June, 2020 and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the
Universities Act, 2012 and the Public Finance Management Act, 2012.

Basis for Qualified opinion

1. Adoption of the Annual Re port by the University Council

The Statements of the Chairman's and that of the University Council responsibilities at
pages xii and Ivi of the annual report were not signed by the Chairman contrary to Public
Finance Management Act, 2012 section 81(3) which states that “The accounting officer
shali prepare the financial statements in a form that complies with the relevant accounting
standards prescribed and published by the Accounting Standards Board from time 1o
time.,” Management however, indicated that the term of the Council lapsed on
14 August, 2020 before the annual report and financial statements were signed and will
therefore await the appeintment of the next council.

To the extent, the ownership by the University Council of the financial statements
prepared and presented for the year ended 30 June, 2020 and compliance with the Act
could not be confirmed.

Report of the Auditor-General on Machakas Universiiy for the year ended 30 June, 2020



2. Trade and Other Receivables

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other receivables balance of
Kshs. 271,812, 336:(2019-Kshs.179,141,263) and as disclosed under Note 16 to the
financial statements. A review of the schedules provided in support of the balance
revealed the following anomalies:

2.1. Erronecus Intra-University Trade Receivable Balance

Included in the trade receivables balance is intra-university receivable balance of
Kshs.2,288 480 which ought to have been excluded in the trade and other receivables
balance. Management explained the debt arose from meals provided by a hotel operated
as an income generating project. However, the hotel is owned by the University and does
not prepare accounts separately.

Consequently, the accuracy, and completeness of the trade and other receivables
balance of Kshs.271,912,336 as at 30 June, 2020, could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAls). | am independent of the Machakos University Management in
accordance with 1SSAl 130 on Code of Ethics. | have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the ISSAl and in accordance with other ethical requirements
applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. | believe that the audit
evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review,

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUELIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters raised in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and
Effectivenessin Use of Public Resources section of my report; | confirm that, nothing else
has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Failure to Comply with the Employment Act on Deductions

The statement of financial performance reflects employment costs of Kshs. 1,102,821 833
and as disclosed under Note 9 to the financial statements. Scrutiny of the University's

Report of the Auditor-General on Machakos University for the year ended 30 June, 2020
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payrolls for the year under audit revealed that two hundred-and-twenty (220) employees
were eaming net salaries of below a third of their basic salaries. This is contrary to the
provisions of section 19(3) of the Employment Act, 2007 which stipulates that total amount
of all deductions made by an employer from the wages of his employee at any one time
shall not exceed two-thirds of such wages.

In the circumstances, the University was in breach of the law.
2. Projects Implementation

The statement of financial position reflects Property, Plant & Equipment (FPE) balance
of Kshe 2 773,185 154; (2019-Kshs.2 690,708,306) and as disclosed under Note 15 to
the financial statements. However, the following anomalies were noted:

2.1 Delayed Completion of Tuition and Office Block

Included in the balance is Work-in-Progress of Kshs, 347,075,206 is Kshs.351,345 606
relating to ongoing works on tuition and office block. The contract for the construction was
awarded on 6 July, 2017, at a sum of Kshs 986,761,115 over a 3 years period. However,
as at the time of this audit in October, 2020, the project was at 54% completion level, 3
months after the lapse of the contract period. A review of the approved budget for the
year under review, revealed that only Kshs.70,390,829 had been allocated to the project
which is inadequate to cover the outstanding contract sum of Kshs.639,685,909.

In the circumstances, the project implementation is behind schedule and the likelihood
for cost escalation may hinder the University to obtain value for money from the
investment.

2.2 Delayed Implementation of Sports and Games Facility

The Work-in-Progress (WIP) includes an amount of Kshs.1,723 600 in respect to
construction of a sports and games facility which had no budgetary allocation. No works
were carried out during the year. Management explained that approval which was earlier
given by the National Environment Management Authority (NEMA) was withdrawn by
Water Resource Authority (WRA) on the basis that an environmental impact assessment
report on the proposed project did not explain how it would interact with the riparian land.

It was therefore, not clear if the project will be approved for implementation by the
Authority and whether value for money will be realized from the amount incurred of
Kshs.1,723,600 on preliminaries.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that |
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion,

Report of the Auvditor-Gemeral on Machakos University for the vear ended 30 June, 2020
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REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters raised in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, | confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Long Outstanding Receivables

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other receivables balance of
Kshs.271,912,336,(2019-Kshs.179,141,263) and as disclosed under Note 16 to the
financial statements. Included in this balance are student fees arrears amounting to
Kshs. 131,192 932 out of which Kshs 49,148 961 has been outstanding for over five (5)
years with some dating back to 2010. Also included in the balance is Kshs.65,332,930 in
respect of trade debtors out of which debts amounting to Kshs.15,664 304 has been
outstanding for over (2) years with some dating back to 2013.

Although provision for bad and doubtful debts of Kshs.25,835,390 has been made against
the trade and other receivables, there is no evidence of tangible efforts being undertaken
by Management towards recovery of the long outstanding debts,

Consequently, the accuracy, and fair statement of the trade and other receivables
balance of Kshs. 271,912,336 as at 30 June, 2020, could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the University Council

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and overall governance.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
University's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters

Report of the Aunditor-General on Machakas University for the year ended 30 June, 2020
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related to the sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting
unless Management is aware of the intention to terminate the University or to cease
operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015,

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The University Council is responsible for overseeing the University's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how the Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to overall
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from maternal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 228(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Fublic Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the intermal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material weakness is a condition in

Repare of the Auditor-Cengral on Machakor University for the year ended 30 June, 2020
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which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control componants does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate bacause of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls, | exercise service professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the University's
ability to continue to sustain its services. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
| am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the University to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the University to express an opinion on the financial statements.

« Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit.

Report aof the Auditor-General on Machakos University for the year ended 30 June, 2020
&



| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

%
CPA%U, cBS

AUDITOR-GENERAL
MNairobi

01 February, 2022
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL FERFORMANCE

INCOME Notes

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Government Grants S5(m)
Research Grants 5(b)
CBA Grants 5(c)
Amortized Grants in kind [+
Revenue from exchange transactions

Tuition & Other Related Incomes 7
LG.A. & Other Incomes 8
Total Income

EXPENDITURE

Employment Costs 9
Council Expenses 10
Academic Expenses 11
Administration & Operations Expenses 12
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses 13
Other Expenses 14
Depreciation 15
Increase in Provision for doubtful debts 16(a)
Total Expenditure

Surplus / Deficit

2019-2020 2018-2019
Ksh Ksh

957,026,140 869,524,574
25,034,933 11,804,185
162,185,049 :
5,291,077 5,291,077
1,149,537,199 886,619,836
324,923 438 364,937,509
100,045,248 152,709,209
424,968,686 517,646,718
1,574,505,885 1,404,266,553
1,102,621,833 968,447,713
11,317,002 10,254,154
85,631,771 90,909,070
138,277,309 159,693,743
13,186,030 16,055,504
47,683,067 52,436,277
77,929,558 68,005,574
3,155,187 4,604,560
1,480,001,756 1,370,406,594
94,504,129 53,859,960

The notes set out on pages 12 to 31 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.







Mactiakos Eniversidn

Financial year Beporrs oad Fieayciol stafewments for the pear oided Jane 30, 20210

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS Notes 2019-2020 2018-2019
Ksh Ksh
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant & Equipment 15 2,773,185,154 2,690,706,306
2,773,185,154 2,690,706,306
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Stocks-Inventories 17 26,388,725 16,271,882
26,388,725 16,271,882
Trade and other Receivables
Exchange transactions 16{a) 173,159,139 174,033,382
MNon-Exchange transactions 16(b) 98,753,197 5, 107.881
271,912,336 179,141,263
Cash & Bank balances 18 199,407,682 281,552,974
Sub-total 497,708,743 476,966,120
Total Assets 3,270,693,898  3,167,672,426
CAFITAL FUNDS & LIABILITIES
Net Assets
Capital Reserve 19 2 962,099,567  2,927,203,259
Revenue Reserve 20(a) (75,047,197) (166,432,329)
Deferved Income 20(h) 8,691,294 13,982,371
Sub-total 2,895,743,663 2,774,753,301
Current liabilities
Trade and other Payables 21 375,150,234 392,919,125
Total Net Assets and Liabilities 3,270,893,898  5,167,672,426

The Financial Statements set out on pages 1 to 11 were signed on behalf of the University
Council by:

T

CPA Aileen Nyatuga

ICPAK No. {4
out ... |4 |32P30 pue 1512207,
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Description

Balance as at 1st July 2018
Additional Capital (Note 19)
Revaluation Reserve (Mote 19)
Prior year Adjustments (Note 20)
Surplus for the year 2018/2019
Amortized for the year 2018/2019
Balance as at 30th June 2019

Balance as at 1st July 2019
Additional Capital (Note 19)
Revaluation Reserve (Note 19)
Prior year Adjustments (Note 20)
Surplus for the year 2019/2020
Amortized for the year 2019/2020
Balance as at 30th June 2020

Capital Eevenue Deferred Total
Reserve Reserve Income
Ksh Ksh Esh Ksh

2.606,063,018 (196,575,320) 19,273,448 2,428,T61,146
257,500,000 - - 257,500,000
63,640,241 - 63,640,241
(3.716.969) - (3,716,969)
33,859,960 - 33,859,960
- (5,291,077) (5,291,077)
- 2,927,203,259 (166,432,329) 13,982,371 2, 774,753,301
2,927,203,259 (166,432,329) 13,982,371 2.774,753,301
70,390,829 . . 70.390,829
(35,494,521) - - (35,494.521)
(3,118,997) - (3,118,997)
- 93,616,766 : 93 616,766
- (5,291,077 (5,291,077)
2 962,099,567 (75,934,560) 8,601,293 2,895,743,663
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Finawcial pear Reports and Finowcial ta fesmenifs for e verr ended! Soere 30, 2028
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Cash flows from Operating activities Notes  2019-2020 2018-2019
RECEIFTS Ksh Ksh
Revenue from non-exchange transactions ] 1,144,246,122 881,328,759
Revenue from exchange transactions T/8 424 968 636 517,646,718
1,569,214,808 1,398,975476
PAYMENTS
Employment Costs 2 1,102,821.833 Q65,447,713
Council Expenses 10 11,317,002 10,254,154
Academic Expenses 11 85,631,771 90,909,070
Administration & Operations Expenses 12 138,277,309 159,693,743
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses 13 13,186,030 16,055,504
Other Expenses 14 47,683,067 52436277
1,398,917,011 1,297,796,460
Cash flows from operating activities 170,297,797 101,179,016
Working Capital Adjustments
Change in Inventories 17 (10,116,843) (4,219,964)
Change in Trade & Other Receivables 16 (95,926,260) (41,542, 780)
Frior year Adjustments 20 (3,118,997) (3,716,969)
Change in Trade & Other payables 21 (17,768,891) 200,495,422
(126,930,991) 151,015,709
Net cash flows from operating activities 43,366,806 252,194,726
Purchase of Property, Flant & Equipment 15 (195.902,927) (323,572.346)
Development grants for the year 19 70,390,329 257,500,000
Net cash flows used in investing activities {(125,512,098) (66,072,346)
Cash flows from Financing activities - -
Net increase in cash & cash equivalents (32,145,292) 186,122,379
Net cash & cash equivalents b/f 281,652,974 95,430,594
Cash & Bank balances as at 30th June 18 199,407,682 281,552 974
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Muchakos Universdty
Finangial year Reporrs and Flaagycal stofemrenis for the pear erded June 20; 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. GENERAL INFORMATION

principal activity is to provide scholarly
Machakos University is established by and

derives its authority and accountability from

education through Training, Research and

Innovation for indusirial and socio-

The Universities Act. The University is ; ;
economic transformation of our

holl ed by the G tof K e
wholly owned by the Government of Kenya communitics.

and is domiciled in Kenya. The éntity's

2. STATEMENT OF COMFLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREFARATION — IPSAS 1

the state orzans and public entifies. The
The entiiy.s financial Halemen = Reve:been financial statements are presented in Kenya
shillings, which is the functional and

reporting  currency of the entity. The

prepared in accordance with and comply
with International Public Sector Accounting
Standards (IPSAS). The University adopted
IFSAS in the year 2014 following the
gazettement of the Public-Sector Accounting
Standard Board (PSASB), which was
cstablished by the Public Financial
« Management Act (FFM) No 18 of 24% July
2012. PSASB issues financial reporting
standards and guidelines to be adopted by

accounting policies have been consisténtly
applied to all the years presented. The
financial statements have been prepared on
the basis of historical cost, unless stated
otherwise. The cash flow stafement: is
prepared using the indirect method. The
financial statements are prepared on accrual
basis.

3. ADOFTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

L. Relevant new standards and amendments to published standards effective for the year ended
30 June 2020

AL

Standard Impact

IPSAS 33: First In January 2015, the IFSASE published IPSAS 33, First-time Adoption of Accrual Basis
time adoption of [PSASs.

Accrual Basis -Machakos University adopted IPSAS in the year ended 30 June 2015 and therefore
IPSAS | provisions of first tume adoption of accrual basis does not apply to the entity.

IPSAS 34: Separate | In January 2015, the [PSASB published IPSAS 34, Separate Financial Statements. [PSAS
Finaricial 34 prescribes the accounting and disclosure requirements for investments in controlled
Statements entities, joint ventures and associates when an enfity prepares separate financial
statements.

IIIFML:H':
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Joint Ventures

[ IPSAS 87: Joint

} Arrangements

Standard Impact
-Machakos University does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or investiments and
therefore the standard does not apply/ the entity is a parent company and has prepared
consolidated financial statements and therefore the standard does not apply/ the entity
is a parent company and has prepared separate financial statements and the following is
the impact of application of the new standard:

IPSAS 35: In January 2015, the IPSASE published IFSAS 35, Consolidated Financial Statements,

Consolidated IPSAS 55 establishes principles for the preparation and disclosure of consolidated

Financial financial statements when an entity controls one or more entities.

Statements -Machakos University does nol have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or investments and
therefore the standard does not apply.

IPSAS 56: In January 2015, the IPSASE published IPSAS 36, Investmentis in Associates and Joint

Investments in Ventures. Machakos University does not have investments in associates or joint ventures

Associates and and therefore the standard does not apply.

In January 2015, the IPSASH published IPSAS 37, Joint Arrangements. IPSAS 37
establishes principles for financial reporting by entities that have an interest in
arrangements that are controlled jointly.

Machakos University does not have an interest in a joint arrangement and therefore the
standard does not apply.

| IPSAS 38:

| Disclosure of

| Interests in Other
Entities

In January 2015, the IPSASB published IPSAS 38, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities.
IFSAS 38 requires an entity to disclose information that enables users of its financial
statements to evaluate the nature of and risks associated with, its interests in controlled
entities, joint arrangements and associates, and structured enhties that are not
consolidated; and the effects of those interests on its financial position, financial
performance and cash flows.

-Machakos University does not have any interests in other entities and therefore the
standard does not apply.

IFSAS 39:
Employee Benefits

Applicable: 1# January 2018

The objective to issue IPSAS 39 was to create convergence to changes in IAS 19 Employee
benefits. The [PSASB needed to create convergence of IPSAS 25 to the amendments done
to IAS 19. The main objective is to ensurc accurate information relating to pension
liabilities arising from the defined benefit scheme by doing away with the corridor
approach.

13|[*'.tl.{e
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Muchakos University

Financiod year Beports wnd Financiol statemens for the year ended fune 30, 20240

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the year
ended 30 June 2020
[Standard Effective date and impact:
IPSAS 40; Public Sector | Applicable: 1% January 2019:
Combinations The standard covers public sector combinations arising from exchange

transactions in which case they arc treated similarly with [FRS
3{applicable to acguisitions only) Business combinations and
combinations arising from non-exchange transactions which are covered

| purely under Public Sector combinations as amalgamations.

II. Early adoption of standards

Machakos University did not carly — adopt any new or amended standards in the financial year
2019/2020.
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Revenue Recognition
(i) Revenue from non -exchange transactions-IPSAS 23

Donations are recognized when received and the asset recognition criteria are met. Values for
grants and donations related to property, equipment and other assets are estimated by the
University or as advised by donors. Donations in kind of current nature are recognized in the
year received and categorized as inventories while those of capital nature are prorated in their
useful life in a systematic mannér and categorized as deferred income in the financial statements
in accordance with IPSAS 23.

Transfer from government entities are measured at fair value and recognized on obtaining the
asset if the transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service
potential related to the asset wall flow to the entity and can be measured reliably.

(ii)  Revenue from exchange transactions-IPSAS 9

Fees and other incomes are recogmized when earned during the financial year. Revenue from
the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably and it 15 probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated
with the transaction will flow to the entity.

14|Pz:ge
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Confinued)
b) Budget Information-IFSAS 24

The Annual Budget is prepared on accrual basis, that is, all planned costs and income are
presented in a single statement to determine the needs of the entity. As a result of the adoption
of the accrual basis for budgeting purposes, there are no basis, timing or entity differences that
would require reconciliation between the actual comparable amounts and the amounts
presented as a separate additional financial statement in the statement of comparison of budget
and actual amounts.

c) Property, Plant and Equipment-IPSAS 17

All property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and

nil or nominal consideration the asset is
initially measured at its fair value.

impairment  losses,  Cost  includes Depreciation is calculated on straight line
expenditure that is directly attributable to basis over the estimated useful lives of the
the acquisition of the items. When assels.

significant parts of property, plant and The annual rates in use are:

equipment are required to be replaced at Land - 0%

intervals, the entity recognizes such parts as Buildings - 2.5%

individual assets with specific wseful lives Motor vehicles - 25%

and depreciates them accordingly. Furniture & Equipment - 12.5%
Likewise, when a major inspection is g‘;’;g;ﬁm & Computer Software -

performed, its cost is recognized in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment
as a replacement if the recognition criteria

are satisfied. All othér repair and Library books and 1 tools ate oot

maintenance costs are recognized in surplus for under Property, Plant and Equipment as
- " 1 1‘
or deficit as mcurred. Where an asset 18 per the IPSAS 17.

acquired in a non-exchange transaction for

Library books - 5%
Loose Tools - 12.5%

d) Inventories-[PSAS 12

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. After inmhial recognition, inventory s
measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. However, to the extent that a class of
inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a nominal charge, that class of inventory
is measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange, or distribution. Inventories are
recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in the ordinary course
of operations of the entity.

15| Page
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Muchiakos University
Finireiciand yewr Bepocis aied Finwactal stafenmonis for the veor ended Jine 30, 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
¢) Nature and purpose of reserves

The entity créeates and maintaing reserves in terms of specific requirements. The reserves are
maintained to cater for assets replacement, settlement of bad and doubtful debts, and any other
contingency.

f) Changes in accounting policies and estimates — IPSAS 3

The entity recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects of
changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively; if retrospective application is
impractical

2) Employee benefits-[PSAS 39

Retirement benefit plans

The University established a defined contributions benefits scheme by the name Machakos
University Retirement Pension Scheimne under the custodian of Machakos university pension
scheme, where employees’ contributions are channeled to. The fund is managed by Liberty
. Pension Scheme.

h) Related parties — IPSAS 20

The entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ahility to exert control
individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the entity, or vice versa. These
parties offer managerial, advisory and rezulatory services. The Natonal Government, Members
of Council and the management team are regarded as related parties in preparation of these
financial statements. National Government transactions have been disclosed under révenue ftrom
non- exchange transactions (Recurrent grants) and under capital reserves (Development
grants), Members of Council allowances and management team remuneration have been
disclosed under Administrative and Academic expenses in the statement of financial
performance. The related parties’ transactions are summarized in tables (a), (b} and (c) below:
a) COUNCIL MEMBERS

g 2019/2020 2018/2019
Sitting Allowances 4,606,000 4,628,350
Mileagze Allowances ATE 102 1,057,604
Subsistence Allowances 4 080,300 2,170,900 |
Honoraria and Telephone 1,044,000 1,087,500 |
Lurich Allowances. 4,000 34,000
Others o T0d R0 1,275,800

[Totals — | iis17,002] 10,254,154
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

b) NATIONAL GOVERNMENT
Grants - 2019/2020 2018/2019
Recurrent Grants K ‘55?,:?'2’3,] 40 | 869,524,574
CBA Grants 162,185,049
Development Grants 70,390,829 257,500,000

1,189,602,018 | 1,127,024,574

) MANAGEMENT TEAM

2019/2020 |  2018/2019
Total remuneration 77,631,838 75,505,737
1) Cash and cash equivalents — IPSAS 2

Cash and cash equivalenis comprise cash on hand, M-Pesa, cash at bank, short-term deposits on
call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value.

j) Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous period have been amended, or
reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

k) Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty — [PSAS 1

The preparation of the entity's financial statemenis in conformity with IPSAS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end
of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or
liability affected in future.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation of uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next period, are described. The entity based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developinents may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the entity. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140;

17|Page
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Machokos Universigy
Finneial pear Reports and Firamoiod stotemens for tlhe yenar efiden Tape 300 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Usaful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assels are assessed using the following indicators to inform
potential future use and value from disposal:
The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the entity

- The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaplability to changes in technology and

processes

- The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed

- Availability of funding to replace the asset

- Changes in the market in relation to the asset.

PR e
- Provision for Doubtful debts policy

- A provision of 50% of any uncollected debt that is outstanding for 5 years and above as
a doubtful debt is provided.

I) The Accounts Receivables
- The Accounts receivables are stated at their nominal value.

m) Accounts Payables
- The Accounts payables are stated at their noininal value.

n) Deferred Income

Deferred income arises as a result of donation in kind of fixed assets from Netherlands and
seeding Labs that are amortized annually at a rate of 12.5%. All other relevant costs being freight,
custom and clearing charges are capitalized under Furniture & Equipment. Refer to note 20(B).

o) Capital Reserves

Capital reserves recognized in the financial statements comprises of development grants from
the ministry and revaluations of property, plant and equipment

p) Subsequent events — IPSAS 14

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the
financial statements for the financial year ended 30% June, 2020.

q) Corporate Tax

Machakos University is exempted from paying corporate tax by the Income Tax Act Cap 470 of
the laws of Kenya.

18| Page
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

r) Financial Risk Management

Machakos University’s activities expose the institution to a variety of financial risks including
eredit and liquidity risks, effects of changes in foreign currency and changes in market prices.
The University's overall risk management programme focuses on unpredictability of changes in
the business environment and seeks to minimize the potential adverse effect of such risks on its
performance by setting acceptable levels of risk. The university’s financial risk management
encompasses the scrutiny and proactive oversight of a number of key elements of the University’s
operations including Credit risk, Liquidity risk and market risk.

() Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the University. The University’s credit risk is primarily atiributable
to its receivables. The amounts presented in the statement of financial position are net of
provision for doubtful debts, estimated by the University’s management based on prior
cxpericnce and their asscssment of the current economic environment. The management
provides 50% for doubtful debts for Non-performing debts in every year to mitigate the financial

risks. .
Performing (Below 5 | Non-Performing Total
years) {5 years and

o o above)
As at 30" June 2020 Kshs Kshs Kshs
Student Fee arrcars 82.042.970 49149962 131,192 952
Trade & Other deblors 65.180.779 2720818 67,901,597
Total 147,223,749 51,870,780 199,094,529
As at 30" June 2019 — Tabs Kshs Kshs
Student Fee arrears 63,797,422 44,356,168 108,153,590
Trade & Other debtors 87,455,757 1,204,238 85,659,995
Total 151,253,179 45,560,406 196,813,685

(i) Liquidity risk management

The University's liabilities subject to financial risk are categorized as Sundry Trade Payables,
Prepaid fees and Staff Gratuity Payable as shown in the table below:

19| Pape
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Machakes University
Firngweial year Repores and Finamoial statemends for dhe pear evrbed Jane 20, 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Performing Non- Total
_. (within a year) | (Over one year)

As at 30 June 2020 Kshs Kshs Kshs
Sundry Trade Payables 19,101,384 - 19,101,384
staff Gratuity Payable 50,459,574 - 50,450,574
Prepaid fees 42,738,199 : 42,733,199
Total 142,299,157 - 142,299,157
As at 30" June 2019 Kshs Kshs Kshs
Sundry Trade Payables 9.807,130 - 9,807,130
Staff Gratuity Fayable 93,085,016 - 93,085,016
Prepaid fees 44 330,043 : 44 330,043
Total 147,222,189 5 147,222,189

The University has disclosed KShs 142.2 M being amounts owed to Trade and other payables as
indicated above. However, the University has trade and other receivables amounting to KShs
199M which can offset the liabilities hence mitigate the liquidity risks.

(iti) Market risk
There has been no change to the University's exposure o market risks or the manner in which
it manages and measures the risk.

(iv) Capital Risk Management
The ohjective of the entity’s capital risk management is to safezuard the Board’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The enfity capital siructure comprises of the following funds:

2019/2020 | 2018/2019
KShs EShs
Fetamed earnings (75,047,197} (167,569,529)
Capital reserve 2,962,099 567 2927203259
Deferred Income 8,691,293 13,982,371
Total funds 2,895,743,663 2,7753,615,801
Total borrowings
Less: cash and bank balances 199,407 682 281,552,974
MNet debt/ (excess cash and cash equivalents) B .

The University does not have any long-term obligations hence the gearing ratio does not apply.

Eﬂll‘aﬂgc
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
5. (a) RECURRENT GRANTS (CAFITATION)

State Department for University Education
State Department for University Education
State Department for University Education
State Departiment for University Education
State Department for University Education
State Department for University Education
State Department for University Education
State Department for University Education
State Departrent for University Education
State Department for University Education
State Department for University Education
State Department for University Education

5.(b) RESEARCH GRANTS

Research Grants

5. {c) CBA GRANTS

State Department for University Education
State Department for University Education

5. (d) DEVELOPMENT GRANTS

State Department for University Education
State Department for University Education
State Department for University Education
State Department for University Education
State Department for University Education
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT GRANTS

2| Page
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2019-2020 2018-2019
Kshs. Kshs,
79,752,178 73,939,164
79,752,178 73,939,164
73,752,179 73,932,164
79,752,178 73,939,164
To.752,179 09,502,816
79,752,178 69,502,815
TO.7T52,178 ?Eﬁéﬁﬂ,SEI
Ta752,178 T2 460381
79,752,178 68,024,031
79,752,179 73,939,165
79,752,179 73,939,165
79,752,178 73,939,164

957,026,140 869,524,574

2019-2020 2018-2019
Kshs. Eshs.
25,034,933 11,804,185
25,034,933 11,804,185

2019-2020 2018-20149
Kshs. Kshs.
65,879,047 =
96,306,002 :

162,185,049 R

2019-2020 2018-20149
Kshs. Kshs.
70,590,529 46,942 027

- 21,481,263
- 2. 880,583
: 21,630,583
- 164,565,544
70,390,829 257,500,000
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Muchakos Liniversity
Fiaanciod venr Reports aind Fimdictal stedenrents for the pear anded June 308, 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. GEANTS IN KIND 2019-2020 2018-2019
Kshs. Kshs,

Furniture & Equipment (24, 542, 200 x 12.5%) 3,067,775 3,067,775
Donated Loose Tools (403,832 x12.5%) 50,479 50,479
E‘f;:gg’;mnzlﬁf'"g g 2,172,828 2,172,828

5,291,077 5,291,077

NOTE: (a) Donated Assets in the year 2012/2013 comprised of;
1. Equipment from Netherlands KShs 24,542 200.00
#. Loose Tools from Metherlands EShs 403, 852.00
(b)Donated Assets in the year 2016/2017 comprised of;
1. Equipment from Seeding Labs Ksh 17,382,586
7. TUITION & OTHER RELATED INCOMES
2019-2020 2018-2019

VOTEHEAD Kshs. Kshs.
Activity fee 7,570,180 8,649,750
Admission fee 4.471,125 3,781,500
Alummi Income 1,BT0, 750 1,562,160
Application fee 538,129 717,285
Attachment Fee 17,937,012 15,189,218
Boarding 3,743,674 3,691,570
Catering 3,669,000 6,032,982
Centre fees 53,600 52,000
Certification income 2,800 S00
Computer Praject fee 688,000 5,498,313
Examinations fee 2R BEG.530 26,397,000
General damages 40 295 152,393
Graduation Fees 7,448 550 5,414,900
Industrial Attachment & Insurance 117,200 400
Integrated Computer Technolozy 27,567,500 23.025.500
KMNEC Exams Fee 1,698,660 4.458.920
Laboratory/Workshop fee 15,723,790 14,101,852
Library fee 4,720,806 5083671
Material development 2,082,300 3,315,693
Medical fee 14,337,355 15,994 672
Penalty fee GAAG6 68,500
Quality Assurance fee 6,590,300 6,401,250
R.D Cheques Charges Income 1,200 12,270
Referral/ Supplimentary 6,580,950 5,122,500
Regisiration fec 8225267 9,320,000
Re-Take Fee 52,787 79,511
Statutory charges = 10,600
Students Identity Cards 1,259,250 1,136,200
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7. TUITION & OTHER RELATED INCOMES

2019-2020 2018-2019
VOTEHEAD Kshs. Kshs,
Students Insurance fee 723,971 7,900,816
Students projects 438,100 BT7,000
Supervision fees 60,000 66,000
Teaching Practice fee 577,082 1,644,047
Thesis Examination 90,000 140,000
Tuition fee 156,882,716 183,057,636
TOTAL 324,923,438 364,937,509
8. LG.A AND OTHER INCOMES 2019-2020 2018-2019
VOTEHEAD Kshs Kshs
Le Technisch Restaurant 095,445,367 148,771,090
Froduction Unit -Food & Beveraze 72,190 96,685
Production Unit - Agriculture - 15,590
Production Unit - Physical Sciences 2.200 500
Production Unit - Corporate Affairs 222,500 95410
Production Unit - FADMA 500 -
Production Unit - Renewable Energy - 763,750
Auction 125,350 166,400
Seminar - 1,550,000
Hire of facilities 3,590,513 472,250
Kent S42.000 455,000
Tender Fea - 14,500
Management fee 45,147 26,759
Miscellaneous Income 199,482 2853,27TH
TOTAL 100,045,248 152,709,209
9. EMPFLOYMENT COSTS 2019-2020 2018-2019

Kshs Kshs

Gross pay (Staif Payroll) 910,561,698 795,751,437
Provision for CBA Arrears 96,306,002 -
Provision for Leave Allowance 2522778 2 482 306
Provision for Staff Gratuity 19,455,489 28.617,578
Frovision for Commuter allowance - 43,431,000
Part-Time lecturers 41,468,800 57,370,520
Casual wages 18,861,808 30,641,221
Other staff allowances (staff Costs) 905,266 787,003
Adjunct Lecturers Pay 12,304,792 10,667,668
Locum Staff pay 437,200 698,980
TOTAL 1,102,821,8353 968,447,713
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. COUNCIL EXFENSES 2019-2020 Z2018-2019
Sitting Allowances 4,606,000 4,628,350
Mileage Allowances 878,102 1,057,604
Subsistence Allowances 4,080,300 2,170,900
Honoraria and Telephone 1,044,000 1,087,500
Lunch Allowances 4,000 34,000
Others 704,600 1,275,800
Total 11,317,002 10,254,154
11. ACADEMIC EXPENSES

2019-2020 2018-2019
VOTEHEAD Kshs Kshs
Academic dress 6,858,000 4341216
Academic Rescarch Expenses 20,952,644 12,835,475
Agricultural Farm Expenses 159,597 141,802
Alumni expense 571,300 151,300
Attachment expenses 2,611,554 623,312
Boarding/Accommodation expenses 251,400 417,000
Catering expenses 7,610,886 9,629,216
CLIE expenses 3,887,229 #,660,000
Curriculum development expenses 80,000 273079
Examinations expenses 8,658,971 6,872,054
Exhibitiona & Shows 681,066 1367250
External examinations expenses 667,079 457,501
Field courses expenses 12,070 965,090
Graduation Expenses 9.915473 7,766,572
Industrial linkages 127 860 -
Innovation fund expenses oo5,425 118,800
Insurance (Students) expenses 2AT1.075 3432113
Internal Research expenses 3407448 4249150
KUCCFS expenses 2,160,000 4,474,000
Lab Apparatus and Consumables 74,800 -
Medical (Students) expenses 1,766,651 1,929,199
Regulatory bodies Expense 4,000 803,500
Senate & Senate Commitiees expenses 404 880 305,590
Sports & Games 3,034,850 5,429,655
Students Activities expenses 1,662,463 2,940,975
Students Bursary fund expense 1,000,000 1,000,000
Students Work Study expenses 485 650 213,500
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11. ACADEMIC EXPENSES

2019-2020 2018-2019

VOTEHEAD Kshs Kshs
Teaching Materials and Expenses 1,335,799 5642874
Teaching practice expenses 3,328,592 5,038817
TOTAL 85,631,771 90,909,070
12. ADMINISTRATIVE AND OFERATIONS EXPENSES

2019-2020 2018-2019
VOTEHEAD Ksh Ksh
Advertisement expenses 1,650,556 4 838 454
Association of Government Council expenses o 20,000
Audit fees 960,000 960,000
Autommation expenses 1,199,500 4,302,040
Bank Charzes 2,258,759 1,088,238
Chancellors Expenses 1,200,000 1,200,000
Change in Inventories (10,116,843) (4,219,964)
Cleaning & Sanitation 6,181,778 3,356,152
Conterences, Workshops and Seminars Expenses 1,145,269 7,001,193
Electricity Expense 6,764,856 7,872.201
External Travelling expenses 379,957 1,500,598
Health care services 66,019,161 58,960,753
Hire of Facilities expenses - 172,780
ICT Services & Internet 10,500,283 8,848,190
Legal expenses BT0,940 4,194,210
Management Capacity Building 36,000 701,324
Management meetings expenses 314,820 2,195 745
Marketing & Publicity Expense 749,148 1,180,978
Newspapers & Magazines 592,100 1,262,120
Office Consumables A55,171 1,182,060
PC & ISO 1,294 643 2.435.115
Fhotocopying services 6,328 6,001
Professional fees 3,255,186 1,385,477
Property Insurance 2,630,197 4,138,000
Rent & Rates - 10,118
Security Expenses 8,589,920 10,066,377
Staff Development 1,744,354 2,572,862
Staff Uniforms 11,000 559,950
Staff welfare expenses 1,279,599 784,767
Stationery Expenses 9,952,872 T, 772028
Strategic Planning expenses - 60,000
Subscriptions & Registration Fees 1,262,193 1,866,274
Telephone & Postage 964,549 1,108,598
Travelling & Accommodation expenses 4,624,288 7,315,964
University Committees Expenses 1,578,456 2,172,310
Vice chancellor Committees expenses 94350 12,250
Water & Conservancy 9,827,641 10,779,720
TOTAL 138,277,509 159,693,743
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

13. REFAIRS AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

2019-2020 2018-2019

VOTEHEAD Ksh Ksh
Generator Fuel & maintenarce 100,270 672,336
Grounds Maintenance 2.913.000 451,139
Motor vehicles fuel & Maintenance 5,311,585 4 570,895
Flant & Equipment Maintenance 275,960 319,984
Repairs and Maintenance 4,080,264 10,047,142

TOTAL 13,186,030 16,055,504
14. OTHEE EXFENSES
VOTEHEAD 2018-2020 2018-2019

Kshs Kshs

Le Technisch Restaurant Expenses 43,974,951 91,669 737
Corporate social responsibility 360,338 154,770
Endowment fund 250,000 250,000
Production unit expenses 1,097,778 361,710
TOTAL 47,683,067 52,436,277
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Exchange Transactions
Student fee arrears
Trade Debtors

Other Debtors

Provision for Doubtful debis (50%
49,149,961.50) & (50%%2,720,818)

(=)}
Non-Exchange Transactions

Outstanding Imprests
CBA Granis Recervable
Staff welfare Advance

Total

17, INVENTORIES

Kitchen Consumables
Central Stores

Academic gowns

Closing Stocks- Le Technisch

Total

23!!”“11;11:
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2019-2020 2018-2019
Kshs. Kshs.
131,192,932 108,153,590
65,332,931 88,196,329
2,568,666 463,666
199,094,529 196,813,585
(25,935,390) (22.780,203)
173,159,139 174,033,382
2019-2020 2018-2019
Kshs. Kshs.
2 418,431 4,948,317
96,306,002 u
28,764 159,564
98,753,197 5,107,881
271,912,336 179,141,263
2019-2020 2018-2019
Esh Ksh
459,268 230,011
7,431,328 5,264,254
16,915,015 8,910,066
1,583,114 1,867,551
26,388,725 16,271,882
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18. CASH & BANK BALANCES
2019-2020 2015-2019
Kshs, Kshs.
Cash in hand 127,289 320,579
Mpesa 6,622,921 2862881
Cash and M-Pesa 210
Bank Account No.
Standard Chartered:
Standard Chartered Bank 0102016845602 60,613,735 172,512,613
Standard Chartered Bank 0152016845602 24,202 257 24 165,385
84,815,991 196,677,998
National Bank:
Mational Bank of Kenva Q1020078499400 11,811,387 20,769,089
Mational Bank of Kenya 01020078499401 24,542,031 21,317,982
Mational Bank of Kenya 01020078499402 49,140,083 18,307,201
85,494,401 60,395,171
Kenya Commercial Bank:
Fenya Commercial Bank 11371450064 8,068,952 8,234,009
Kenya Commercial Bank 1180326849 7,002 288 8,064,989
Kenya Commercial Bank 1211488594 1,279,438 B63,843
Kenya Commercial Bank 1211439167 ) 542 830 Z98,955
16,893,508 17,461,866
Cooperative Bank of Kenya:
Co-operative Bank of Kenya Q1129277651100 3,507 057 3,628479
Equity Bank:
Equity Bank: 0cO0ZT86T4858 1,946,514 206,000
TOTAL 199,407,682 281,652,974

Note: The University has an account with Barclays Bank of Kenya which runs the affairs of
student association. All student association membership and subscriptions are transferred from
the University collection accounts to the Barclays Bank account.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Confinued)

19. CAFPITAL RESERVE

2019-2020 2018-2019
Kshs. Kshs,
Balance B/f 2.927,203,259 2.606,063,018
Development Grants for the year: (Note 5 (d)) 70,390,829 257,500,000
Eevaluation of Non-Current Assets (Note 15) (35.494,521) 63,640,241
Balance as at 302 june 2020 2,962,099.567 2,927.203,259
20. (a) REVENUE RESERVE
2019-2020 2018-2019
Kshs. Kshs.

Balance B/f (166,432,529)  (196,575,320)
Prior year Adjustrments (3,118,997) (3,716,969)
Surplus/ Deficit for the year 94,504,129 33,859,960
Balance as at 30t June 2020 (75,047,197)  (166,432,329)

Note: Prior year Adjustments relates to fees adjustments and supplier invoices adjustments

20. (p) DEFERRED INCOME

2019-2020 2018-2019

Kshs. Kshs.

Equipment from Netherlands Bal b/f 3,118,254 6,236,508
Equipment from Seeding Labs Bal b/f 10,864,117 15,036,940

13,982,371 19,273,448
Amortization for the year (24,946,032 [@12.5%) (3,118,254) (3,113,254)
Amortization for the year (17,382,586 (@12.5%) (2,172 823) (2,172.823)
Balance as at 30 June 2020 8,691,294 13,982,371

NOTE: (a) Donated Assets in the year Z012/20135 comprised of;
1. Equipment from Netherlands KShs 24,542 200.00
2. Loose Tools from Netherlands EShs 403,832.00
(b)Donated Assets in the year 2016/2017 comprised of;
1. Equipment from Sceding Labs Ksh 17,382,586
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

21. TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES

Sundry Trade Payables

Prepaid fecs

Refundable Caution fees

Audlit fees

Leave Allowance Payable

Staff deductions payable
Commuter Allowance payable
CBA Arrears payable
Unclaimed Deposits

MksU Benevolent fund
Customer & Other Prepayments
Students Sponsorships Fund
MUSA Membership & Subscription
Camtal Creditors

Chancellors Scholarship fund
Chancellors Endowiment fund
Part Time Claims owing

Staff Gratuity Payable

31|Page
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2019-2020 2018-2019
Kshs. Kshs.
19,101,384 8,807,130
42,738,199 44,330,043
39,518,770 35,518,600
1,920,000 960,000
2822778 2482306
1,886,886 -
. 43,431,000
96,506,002 -
- 4,096,502
- 625,940
6,171,267 100,000
6,652,296 6,117,135
218,446 -
70,527,765 141,045,646
1,279,438 BG5,8435
542 830 298,935
5,303,600 10,157,030
80,459,574 93,085,016
375,150,234 392,919,125
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AFFENDIX [: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITOE RECOMMENDATIONS
The following is the summary of 1ssue raised by the external auditor, and management comments
that were provided to the auditor. We have nominated focal persons to resolve the various issues
as shown below with the associated time frame within which we expect the issues to be resolved.

Reference no. | Issue/Observations | Management | Focal point Status: Time frame: (put
on the from auditor comments person to resolve | (Resolved /Not | a date when you
external the issue (Name | Resolved) expect the issue
audit report and Designation) to be resolved)
N/A Other Matter- Management to | Prof, Lucy W. In Progress In the next 6 to
(2016/2017) | Increased deficit explore more Irungu 7 years,
hence reduced opportunities to | (Vice Chancellor)
Eevenue reserves. | increases
revenue and
control
expenditure.
1 Tuition and other | Management CPA Aileen Resolved Y 2018/2019
(2017/2018) | related incomes. resolved to Nyatugza
Kshas. 5,998,230 receipt the {Chief Finance
that had been students Officer)
banked directly but | deposits
net receipted.
Z: Cash and Bank Management | CPA Aileen Resolved FY 2018/2019
(2017/2018) | Balances. Kshs. agreed to Nyatuga
1,1163.038 replace the {Chief Finance
relating to cheques that Officer)
Unpresented were stale
chegues that had
not been reversed
in the cashbook
| 3. Other Income. Management CPA Aileen Resolved FY 201872019
(2017/2018) | Kshs. 1,596,896 agreed to Nyatuga
relating to direct follow up with | (Chief Finance
bank transfers for | the bank to Officer)
the restaurant that | determine the
had not been customers that
receipted in the had paid and
cash book receipted the
amounts.
i of Council
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APPENDIX 1I: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE UNIVERSITY

Murchakey Dniversify

Finuncial yeur Reports and Fimanetnl stufourepis for IF.'J’II'r"rJJ' endert S T 2020

Projects
Projects implemented by the University funded by Development partners.
8/n | Project Donor Period/ | Donor Separate donor Consolidated in
o Number duration commitm | reporting required as | these financial
ent per the donor statements
| agreement (Yes/No) | (Yes/No)
1. | None N/A N/A - |- - I
Status of Projects completion
Project Total project Total Completion % Budget Actual SOUrces |
Cost expended to to date (2019/2020) | 2019/2020 of
date funds
1. | Tuition and )
Office Block | 986,761,116 | 345,356,606 43 70,390,829 23,200,414 : G.O.K
_ |
2. | Developmen ’ i .
t of Sports | Documentatio
am:lf bIGumE:s NAA| 1,725,600.00 n complete - -| ALA
facility , |
(phase 1) | ' =
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APFENDIX III: INTER- EI'*HTI'!I:'TRANSIERS

Machakas University
Arnieal Reporrs avid Flemnaelal siofewnenis for the period snded Jane 30, 2020

ENTITY NAME:

o o

=

=

Break down of Transfers from the State Department for University Education

' FY 2019/2020 )
The FY to which the
a. Ilmumntﬂmnta Bank Statement Date | Amount (KShs) | - = .00 .0
i 8 August 2019 79,752,178 2019-2020
29% August 2019 79,752,178 2019-2020
i ] 27 September 2019 79,752,179 2019-2020
Lo 1#* November 2019 79,752,178 2019-2020
| 29% November 2019 79,752,179 2019-2020
284 December 2019 79,752,178 2019-2020
4t February 2020 79,752,178 2019-2020
2 March 2020 79,752,178 2019-2020
3 April 2020 79,752,178 [ 2019-2020
8t May 2020 79,752,179 2019-2020
5% June 2020 79,752,179 2019-2020
26" June 2020 T, 752,175 2019-20Z0
MEYTAL o) 957,026,140
o The FY to which the
b. CBA Grants Bank Staterment Date | Amount (KEShs) e S
2017-2020 CBA arrears 6" July 2020 96,306,002 2019-2020
i TOTAL 96,306,002
The FY to which the
G Development Grants Bark Statement Date | Amount (KShs) amounts relte
113 22 November 2019 70,390,329 2019-2020
TOTAL 70,390,829

The Above amounts have been communicated to and reconciled with the parent Ministry

o 5ir

CPA Aileen Nyatuga Mr. Robert Asumani
Michakos Viitreciit State D  Urtiversity Educa
cpako: .. GG .
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